Public Document Pack

AGENDA FOR THE EXECUTIVE
Date:

Monday, 4 April 2022

Time:

6.00 pm

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

Executive Members:

Councillor S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader)
Councillor T M Cartwright, MBE, Health and Public Protection (Deputy Executive
Leader)
Councillor I Bastable, Streetscene
Councillor F Birkett, Housing
Councillor S D Martin, Planning and Development
Councillor Mrs S M Walker, Leisure and Community

Page 1

1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Minutes (Pages 5 - 12)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on
07 March 2022.

3.

Executive Leader's Announcements

4.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest from members in accordance with Standing
Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct.

5.

Petitions

6.

Deputations
To receive any deputations, of which notice has been lodged.

7.

References from Other Committees
To receive any references from the committees or panels held.
Matters for Decision in Public

Note: Where an urgent item of business is raised in accordance with Part 3 of the
Constitution, it will be considered with the relevant service decisions as appropriate.
8.

Health and Public Protection

Key Decision
(1)

Dog Control Public Spaces Protection Order (Pages 13 - 30)
A report by the Head of Environmental Health.

9.

Exclusion of Public and Press
To consider whether it is in the public interest to exclude the public and
representatives of the Press from the remainder of the meeting on the grounds that
the matters to be dealt with involve the likely disclosure of exempt information, as
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972.
Exempt Matters for Decision

Note: Where urgent items of business are raised in accordance with Part 3 of the
Constitution, they will be considered with the relevant service decisions as appropriate.
10. Policy and Resources
Key Decision
(1)

Daedalus - Approval of a Disposal at Spitfire Way (Pages 31 - 46)

Page 2

A report by the Director of Planning and Regeneration.

P GRIMWOOD
Chief Executive Officer
www.fareham.gov.uk
25 March 2022

For further information please contact:
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ
Tel: 01329 236100
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk

Page 3

Agenda Item 2

Minutes of the
Executive
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Monday, 7 March 2022

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

Present:
S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader)
T M Cartwright, MBE, Health and Public Protection (Deputy
Executive Leader)
I Bastable, Streetscene
F Birkett, Housing
S D Martin, Planning and Development
Mrs S M Walker, Leisure and Community
Also in attendance:
R H Price, JP, for item 8(2)

Page 5

Executive

1.

7 March 2022

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence given for this meeting.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on Monday 07 February
2022 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Executive Leader announced that the Council has set up a collection point
at the Civic Offices for items to be sent to the Ukraine via Jacob’s Well which
has had a great response with many donations being received. The Executive
Leader advised that the Polish Embassy has stated, on behalf of the Polish
Government, that whilst the donations and kindness of everyone is very much
appreciated, due to the logistics of lorries getting through and the resources in
sorting the items and getting them to those in need, it would be preferable if
individuals made financial donations instead via recognised organisations
such as the Red Cross. This way the donations can be used to buy what is
required locally and distributed directly.
The Executive Leader stated therefore that from 07 March the collection point
at the Civic Offices will no longer be used and remaining items will be sent to
Jacob’s Well who will arrange for the items to be sent to Romania by road.
The Executive Leader announced the Council has received a high number of
enquiries from people who wish to offer rooms for refugees but at this time, the
Council is waiting for Government advice from the Home Office, and he urged
individuals to await that advice until the Council is in a position to understand
what is required and how this will be managed.
The Executive Leader reiterated his thanks on behalf of the Council for all of
the donations made to date.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

PETITIONS
There were no petitions submitted at this meeting.

6.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

7.

REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
Housing Scrutiny Panel – 03 February 2022
Minute 8 – Draft Housing & Rough Sleeping Strategy Adoption
Page 6

Executive

7 March 2022

At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Mrs T L Ellis addressed the Panel
on this item.
The Panel received a report by the Deputy Chief Executive Officer which
presented the Draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy and
accompanying Delivery Plan for members consideration following completion
of a period of public consultation. The report set out the key findings of the
consultation and asked that the Panel consider the Strategy prior to referral to
the Executive at its forthcoming meeting on 07 March 2022.
Members raised concern that there may be an increase in homelessness and
rough sleeping as a result of people losing their homes through fuel poverty
and the rising cost of living. The Head of Housing and Benefits advised that
the Delivery Plan aims to assess data to provide an understanding of future
needs so that a more strategic approach can be taken to ensure people in
need ask for assistance at an early stage so that they can be signposted to
organisations who can help. The Panel discussed the need to ensure that
services and assistance are well publicised and suggested that in addition to
information being provided on the website, Council noticeboards and local
community hubs could be used to raise awareness of help that is available.
RESOLVED that the Housing Scrutiny Panel:
(a) considered the Draft Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
attached at Appendix B to the report;
(b) considered the Draft Delivery Plan attached at Appendix C to the report;
and
(c) recommends to the Executive that they adopt the Draft Homelessness
& Rough Sleeping Strategy and Draft Delivery Plan at their forthcoming
meeting on 07 March 2022.
This item was considered at item 8(1) on the agenda
Daedalus Scrutiny Panel – 01 March 2022
Minute 7 – Daedalus Financial Strategy
The Panel considered a report and received a presentation by the Deputy
Chief Executive Officer on the Daedalus Financial Strategy.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor S D T Woodward, Executive
Member for Policy and Resources addressed the Panel on this item.
RESOLVED that the Daedalus Scrutiny Panel: (i) notes the content of the report; and
(ii) endorses the recommendations in the report, to the Executive when
they consider this item at their meeting on 7 March 2022.
This item was considered at item 9(1) of the agenda.
Page 7

Executive

7 March 2022

Policy and Resources Scrutiny Panel – 03 March 2022
Minute 6 – Daedalus Financial Strategy
The Panel considered a report by the Deputy Chief Executive Officer on the
Daedalus Financial Strategy.
Members confirmed that they agreed with the strategy and thought it was well
balanced.
RESOLVED that the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Panel: (i) notes the content of the report; and
(ii) recommends that the Executive endorses the strategy, when it is
considered at its meeting on 7 March 2022.
This item was considered at item 9(1) on the agenda
Daedalus Scrutiny Panel – 01 March 2022
Minute 9 – Investment Programme for Solent Airport – Daedalus
The Panel considered a report by the Director of Planning and Regeneration
on the Investment Programme for Solent Airport, Daedalus.
The Panel initially asked questions of RCA regarding the main report, before
moving into private session where RCA were asked to leave the meeting so
that the Panel could discuss the confidential appendices.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor S D T Woodward, Executive
Member for Policy and Resources addressed the Panel on this item.
RESOLVED that the Daedalus Scrutiny Panel: (i) notes the content of the report; and
(ii) endorses the recommendations in the report that will be considered by
the Executive at its meeting on 7 March 2022.
This item was considered at item 9(2) on the agenda.
8.

HOUSING
(1)

Draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy - Adoption

The comments of the Housing Scrutiny Panel were taken into account in
considering this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive:
(a) notes the feedback received from the public consultation exercise, as
detailed in Appendix A to the report; and
Page 8

Executive

7 March 2022

(b) agrees to adopt the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy and
Delivery Plan, as included in Appendix B to the report, to formally
replace the current Homelessness and Housing Options Strategy.
(2)

Assheton Court Redevelopment

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor R H Price, JP addressed
the Executive on this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees:
(a) the funding mechanisms, as outlined in the confidential Appendix A
attached to the report, for the delivery of up to 60 new sheltered
housing apartments; and
(b) that the award of contract and the appointment of building contractor(s)
for the Assheton Court redevelopment be delegated to the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer, following consultation with the Executive Member for
Housing.
9.

POLICY AND RESOURCES
(1)

Daedalus Financial Strategy

The comments of the Daedalus Scrutiny Panel and the Policy and Resources
Scrutiny Panel were taken into account in considering this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive:
(a) approves the draft Daedalus Financial Strategy, as set out in Appendix
A to the report; and
(b) agrees that the Strategy be incorporated into the Council’s Medium
Term Financial Strategy at its next review.
(2)

Investment Programme for Solent Airport, Daedalus

The comments of the Daedalus Scrutiny Panel were taken into account in
considering this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees that:
(a) the interim Managed Hangarage Scheme, as outlined in the
Confidential Appendix A attached to the report, be added to the Capital
Programme in 2022/23 to provide a short-term solution to the provision
of managed hangarage at Solent Airport;
(b) the Economic Hangars Scheme previously approved by the Executive
be removed from the Capital Programme and a plan for replacement
new managed hangarage be developed by 2025;

Page 9

Executive

7 March 2022

(c) the Taxiway Improvement Scheme, as outlined in the Confidential
Appendix A attached to the report, be added to the Capital Programme
in 2023/24 to ensure the continued safe operation of the airport;
(d) the Aircraft Parking Scheme, as outlined in the Confidential Appendix A
attached to the report, be added to the Capital Programme to provide
hard-standing aircraft parking on the grass area north of the Control
Tower;
(e) the Aeronautical Ground Lighting and a Performance-based Navigation
System Scheme, as outlined in the Confidential Appendix A attached to
the report, be added to the Capital Programme in 2023/24 to extend the
airport’s use during periods of poor visibility and darkness;
(f) the provision of self-fuelling facilities, as outlined in the Confidential
Appendix A attached to the report, be added to the Capital Programme
in 2022/23 to provide a more convenient service for fuelling aircraft;
(g) the provision of a Grounds Maintenance facility, as outlined in the
Confidential Appendix A attached to the report, be added to the Capital
Programme in 2022/23; and
(h) the Director of Planning and Regeneration, following consultation with
the Executive Member for Policy and Resources, be delegated authority
to award contracts for each of the above Schemes.
(3)

Citizen of Honour Nominations 2022

RESOLVED that the Executive agrees that:
(a) no more than one candidate is selected from the attached nominations
to be formally recognised as Citizen of Honour 2022;
(b) no more than one candidate is selected from the attached nominations
to be formally recognised as Young Citizen of Honour 2022 (under 18);
(c) candidate 4 is selected from the attached nominations at confidential
Appendix A to the report;
(d) candidate 8 is selected from the attached nominations at confidential B
to the report; and
(e) the persons listed at 4 and 8 in the confidential Appendices A & B to the
report be selected for the annual Citizen of Honour & Young Citizen of
Honour Awards 2022.
(4)

Cash Office Provision

RESOLVED that the Executive approves the proposed transfer of cash
payment facilities to the ground floor reception desk.
10.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 10

Executive

7 March 2022

RESOLVED that in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 the
Public and Press be excluded from the remainder of the meeting, as the
Executive considers that it is not in the public interest to consider the matters
in public on the grounds that they will involve the disclosure of exempt
information, as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act.
11.

POLICY AND RESOURCES
(1)

Irrecoverable Debts

RESOLVED that the Executive agrees that the debts listed in the confidential
Appendix A to the report be written off as irrecoverable.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.30 pm).

Page 11

Agenda Item 8(1)

Report to the Executive for Decision
04 April 2022
Portfolio:

Health and Public Protection

Subject:

Dog Control Public Spaces Protection Order

Report of:

Head of Environmental

Corporate Priorities:

Protect and enhance the environment

Purpose:
To seek Executive authorisation to extend the Public Space Protection Order
(PSPO), relating to dog control, in accordance with the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime
and Policing Act 2014 for a further three year period.

Executive summary:
On 4 March 2019 the Executive authorised the making of a Public Spaces
Protection Order (Dog Fouling) 2019. These can be made for a maximum duration
of three years, after which it may be extended. The current PSPO will expire on 31
March 2022 unless extended.

Recommendation/Recommended Option:
It is recommended that the Executive agrees:
(a) that the draft Public Spaces Protection Order presented to the Executive on 4
April 2022 is extended for a period of three years; and
(b) that delegated authority be given to the Head of Environmental Health to
carry out all necessary publicity required by virtue of the Anti-Social Behaviour,
Crime and Policing Act 2014 (Publication of Public Spaces Protection Orders)
Regulations.

Reason:
To continue to enable enforcement of dog control by way of a Fixed Penalty Notice
throughout the Borough.

Page 13

Cost of proposals:
The cost of proposals can be met from within existing budgets

Appendices:

A: Draft Public Spaces Protection Order (Dog Control)
2022 with map and schedule
B: Equality Impact Assessment

Reference papers:

Consultation response 2022

Page 14

Executive Briefing Paper
Date:

04 April 2022

Subject:

Dog Control Public Spaces Protection Order

Briefing by:

Head of Environmental Health

Portfolio:

Health and Public Protection

INTRODUCTION
1.

On 4 March 2019, the Executive authorised the making of a Public Spaces Protection Order
(Dog Fouling) 2019. A PSPO can be made for a maximum duration of three years, after
which it may be extended.

2.

The current PSPO expires on 31 March 2022 and this report requests extension of this order
for a further three years as awareness raising, engagement with dog owners, clear direction
by officers and ultimately enforcement have worked.

BACKGROUND
3.

The extended PSPO includes restrictions on the following:
(a) Fouling and means of pick up
(b) Dogs on lead by direction
(c) Maximum number of dogs
(d) Dogs on leads and
(e) Exclusion of dogs

CONSULTATION
4.

Before introducing or extending a PSPO the Council is required to carry out a
consultation. The following analysis summarises the findings from the 2022 Public Space
Protection Order (PSPO) dog control consultation. The consultation started on the 28
February to 25 March 2022 and we have had 190 responses.

Page 15

Analysis
5. The following section analyses the results received for each topic area covered in the
PSPO Consultation. It must be noted that for the 2018 consultation the Council received
1152 survey responses where as in 2022 the consultation only received 190 responses.
Dog Fouling
6. Chart 1 below shows the difference between the responses from the 2018 and 2022
consultations when asked how much of problem dog fouling was in a respondent’s local
area.

In chart 1 it can be seen that there has not been a significant change in residents views
regarding the problem of dog fouling. There has been a small increase in the number of
people who think that dog fouling is not a problem at all.
Question - Are there any dog fouling hot spots where you live?
The main hotspots identified by residents in the consultation were grassed areas in general,
then Hill Head beach followed by Cliff Road Promenade and Blackbrook Park.
Question - Should we have the power to issue fixed penalty notices for not clearing up
after a dog has fouled?
As seen below there remains strong support for issuing FPNs for not clearing up dog foul:
2018 – For 96%, against 4%
2022 – For 98%, against 2%
Question - Do you have any comments about our proposals to tackle dog fouling?
The main theme to emerge from comments was made was around increasing the
enforcement of Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN’s). A number of comments also focused on
increasing the provision of bins available to dog owners. A small number of comments

Page 16

mentioned aspects such as more signage and the provision of free dog poo bags. It was also
mentioned by some respondents that dog fouling has improved over the past three years.
Dogs on leads
Question - Should we have the power to direct people to put their dogs on leads if they
are causing a nuisance?
7. As seen below there remains strong support for the power to direct people to put their
dogs on leads if they are causing a nuisance:
2018 – For 94%, against 6%
2022 – For 98%, against 2%
The main themes that arose from the question were that there should be specific areas
where dogs should be on leads, that there is a problem with untrained dogs making people
feel uncomfortable and there also needs to be more warden patrols. Other themes were that
dogs off leads can cause stress to children especially in public parks. It was also mentioned
that defining ‘nuisance’ can be difficult.
Question - Should we have the power to issue fixed penalty notices to owners whose
dogs are off the lead in the areas specified?
It can be seen below that a greater proportion of respondents support dogs being on a lead in
certain areas:
2018 – For 71%, against 29%
2022 – For 87%, against 13%
Question - Should we also have the power to issue fixed penalty notices to owners
whose dogs are off the lead in Portchester Crematorium?
Of the 190 respondents 95% agreed with the new proposal and only 5% disagreed. The
main themes were that it is disrespectful for dogs to be off the lead in this area and that more
signage is needed in areas where dogs must be on leads to inform the public. It was also
mentioned that it is important that there are still areas where dogs can run freely. Another
main theme was that at Hill Head beach there are problems with wildlife being disturbed and
therefore dogs need to be on leads in the area.
Number of dogs someone is allowed to walk
8. Chart 2 below shows the difference between the responses from the 2018 and 2022
consultations when asked how many dogs someone should be allowed to walk.

Page 17

In chart 2 it can be seen that in the 2022 consultation a smaller percentage of respondents
thought people should be able to walk more than four dogs.
Question - Should we have the power to restrict the number of dogs someone can
walk in a public space?
9. It can be seen below that the number of people in favour of the power to restrict the
number of dogs someone can walk increased between 2018 and 2022.
2018 – For 78%, against 22%
2022 – For 95%, against 5%
The main theme from comments received was that professional dog walkers tend to be the
people with large numbers of dogs and that they tend to not take responsibility for what the
dogs are doing.
Exclusion Zones
10. Questions around exclusion zones had the following responses.
Question - Do you think dogs should continue to be excluded from the sites above?
Of the 190 respondents 90% agreed with the sites listed and 10% disagreed.
Question - Do you have any further comment on our proposals to continue to exclude
dogs from certain areas?
The main themes were that dogs should be excluded from play areas and that they should be
on leads at Hill Head beach.
Questions - Please tell us if any of our proposals impact on your ability to look after
your dog?

Page 18

There was only a very small number of comments for this question and the only concern was
that the exclusion zones could potentially increase car use if people were not able to walk far.
11. There have been several responses we received to the consultation inbox. Seven
residents were in favour of extending the PSPO. Hampshire Constabulary responded
stating that they are in favour of extending the PSPO. The Kennel Club provided a
detailed response as part of the consultation process, their responses to each of the
consultation's topic areas were as follows;In respect of dog fouling they want more proactive measures to be adopted. For
example: increase number of bins available for dog owners to use, communicating
that bagged faeces can be disposed of in normal litter bins, running training events
and poster campaigns to encourage owners to pick up after their dog
In respect of dog access, they do not believe in blanket restrictions and suggest that
seasonal or time of day restrictions are effective and the least restrictive approach.
In respect of on lead by direction, they recommend that officers enforcing the order are
familiar with dog behaviour in order to determine whether restraint is necessary
The final point is that they believe appropriate signage is affixed and it is legally
required and that assistance dogs criteria is widened to allow for some flexibility when
considering whether a disabled person’s dog is acting as an assistance dog.
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESMENT
12. The Council has a public-sector equality duty under the Equalities Act 2010 to have due
regard to tackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share the characteristics
protected under S4 of the Act. The Equality Impact Assessment in Appendix B sets out the
protected characteristics and responses to the consultation from the public.
CONCLUSION
13. The definition of those people who rely on ‘assistance dogs’ has also been amended to
reflect the definition identified in the Equality Impact Assessment.

Enquiries: For further information on this report please contact Ian Rickman (Ext 4773)

Page 19

Appendix A
FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

Anti Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014
Part 4, Section 59
Public Spaces Protection Order (Dog Control) 2022

This Order comes into force on the [XXXXXX 2022] and will remain in force for three
years from that date unless extended by further order under the Council’s statutory
powers
Fareham Borough Council (“the Council”) in exercise of its powers under Section 59
of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (“the Act”) being satisfied
that the conditions set out in section 59 of the Act have been met makes the
following Order;1. General provisions
Definitions
1.1 “Authorised Officer” means any officer of the Authority authorised by the
Chief Executive of the Authority for the purposes of paragraphs 4 and 5 of
the Order
1.2 “Public Place” means any place in the administrative area of the Authority
to which the public or a section of the public has access, on payment or
otherwise, as of right by virtue of express or implied permission. The
administrative area of the Authority is land edged in thick black in
Schedule 1
1.3 “Person in Charge” is a person who habitually has a dog in their
possession shall be taken to be in charge of the dog
2. Offence and Penalty
2.1 It is an offence under Section 67 of the Act for a person without
reasonable excuse, (i) to do anything that they are prohibited from doing
under the Order, or (ii) to fail to comply with a requirement which they are
subject to under the order. A person guilty of an offence under section 67
is liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the
standard scale
3. Fouling

Page 21

3.1 The public health implications of dog fouling are well documented. This
part and part 4 of the Order are designed to prevent contamination of
public spaces by dog faeces
3.2 If a dog defecates at any time on any Public Place the person who is in
charge of the dog at the time must remove the faeces forthwith unless;
(a) They have a reasonable excuse for failing to do so, or
(b) The owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the
Public Place has consented (generally or specifically) to them failing to
do so
3.3 Placing the faeces in a receptacle which is provided for that purpose, or
for the disposal of waste, shall be sufficient removal from the Public Place
3.4 Not being aware of the defecation or not having a device for or suitable
means of removing the faeces shall not be reasonable excuse for failing to
remove it
4. Dogs on Lead by Direction
4.1 In public places in the Borough of Fareham where dogs are permitted off
leads, a minority of persons in charge of dogs allow them to cause
damage to property, and cause problems for pedestrians and other dog
owners. This part of the Order is designed to enable authorised Council
officers to direct that such a person put their dog on a lead
4.2 An Authorised Officer may on any Public Place (other than those specified
in Schedule 2 and 3 of the Order from which dogs are excluded from or
must be kept on a lead in any event) direct a person in charge of a dog to
keep the dog on a lead if such restraint is in the opinion of the Authorised
Officer necessary to prevent nuisance to other persons or worry to
animals
4.3 A person issued with a direction under paragraph 5.1 of the order must
comply unless;(a) They have a reasonable excuse for failing to do so, or
(b) The owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the
Public Place has consented (generally or specifically) to them failing to
do so
5. Maximum of four dogs
5.1 There has been an increase in the number of persons and businesses
walking large numbers of dogs together having poor control in some
instances and not picking up faeces. This part of the order seeks to place
limits on the number of dogs which can be walked together to enable
control
5.2 A person shall not at any time take more than four dogs on to any Public
Place (other than those specified in Schedule 3 of the Order from which
dogs are excluded in any event)
5.3 A person must comply with the requirement in paragraph 6.1 of this Order
unless,;-

Page 22

(a) The owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the
Public Place has consented (generally or specifically) to them failing to
do so
6. Dogs on Leads
6.1 In some public spaces within the Borough of Fareham that are sensitive
because of their nature or usage, or which are fragile environments, close
control of dogs by their being on a lead is necessary to prevent damage or
undue disturbance. The restrictions in this Order are designed to facilitate
a sharing of these public places, whilst recognising that dogs to need to
be exercised off lead
6.2 A person in charge of a dog on any public place specified in Schedule 2 to
the Order must keep the dog on a lead unless
(a) They have a reasonable excuse for failing to do so, or
(b) The owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the
place has consented (generally or specifically) to them failing to do so
7. Exclusion of dogs
7.1 There are specific public places in the Borough of Fareham from which
dogs should be excluded for their safety and that of members of the
public, and for public health and aesthetic reasons. This part of the Order
states the relatively few places from where dogs will be excluded.
7.2 A person in charge of a dog must not take it into or keep it in any Public
Place specified in Schedule 3 to the Order unless (a) they have a
reasonable excuse for doing so; or (b) the owner, occupier or other person
or authority having control of the Public Place has consented (generally or
specifically) to them failing to do so.
8. Exemptions
8.1 Nothing in this Order shall apply to a person who:
(a) Is registered as a blind person on a register complied under Section 29
of the National Assistance Act 1948; or
(b) ls deaf, in respect of a dog trained by Hearing Dogs for Deaf People
(registered charity number 293358) and upon which he relies for assistance;
or
(c) Has a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long
term adverse effect on the ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities, in
respect of a dog trained by any current or future member of Assistance Dogs
UK or any other charity registered in the UK with a purpose of training
assistance dogs and upon which he relies for assistance.
(d) Has a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long
term adverse effect on the ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities and
in the reasonable opinion of the Council that person relies upon the
assistance of the dog in connection with their disability.
EXECUTED AS A DEED BY AFFIXING THE COMMON SEAL OF FAREHAM
BOROUGH COUNCIL IN THE PRESENCE OF:

Page 23

Solicitor
Schedule 2
Any Cemetery or churchyard
Crofton Cemetery, Oakcroft Lane, Stubbington
Wickham Road Cemetery, Fareham St Peter's Cemetery, Church Street, Titchfield,
Posbrook Lane Cemetery, Titchfield,
Roman Grove Cemetery, Castle View Road, Portchester,
St Johns Cemetery, St Johns Road, Locks Heath,
St Paul's Cemetery, Barnes Lane, Sarisbury
Holly Hill Cemetery, Barnes Lane, Sarisbury
St Peter and St Paul's Churchyard, Osborn Road, Fareham
St Peter's Churchyard, Church Street, Titchfield
Crofton Churchyard, Lychgate Green, Stubbington
St Mary's Churchyard, Castle Street, Portchester
St Paul's Churchyard, Barnes Lane, Sarisbury
Westbury Manor Museum Garden, Fareham Town Centre
Sensory Garden of Reflection, Osborn Road, Fareham
Salterns Road Promenade, Hill Head
Holly Hill Woodland Park
Holly Hill Play Area
Burridge Pond
Coldeast Open Space
Portchester Crematorium
Any area within Fareham that is:
i). Designated as a Site for Special Scientific Interest ("SSSI") or; ii), where the
Authority keep animals and where signage is present;
a) Portchester Common
b) Abbey Meadows

Page 24

Page 25

±

Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user community

Administrative Area of Fareham

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 OS 100019110. You
are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to,or
interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You
are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this
data to third parties in any form.

Equality Impact Assessment
Appendix B
This document is intended to act as a guide and point of reference, rather than be a template.
There is no requirement to use this document as part of the policy development or decision
making process; although it may help.
When using this form, please feel free to enter as much or as little information as you feel is
appropriate.
Name

Alex Jolley

Date

Job title

Policy, Research and Engagement Officer

22/03/2022

What are you thinking of changing or implementing?
The Council’s current Dog Fouling Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) will expire in
2022 and needs to be extended for a further 3 years. The Council is proposing to extend
this order to continue to have the power to:
 Issue fixed penalty notices for not cleaning up after a dog has fouled
 Direct people to put dogs on leads if they are causing a nuisance
 Issue fixed penalty notices to owners whose dogs are off leads in designated areas
e.g., churchyards and cemeteries
 Limit the number of dogs that can be walked in public to four
 Exclude dogs from designated areas e.g., play areas
It also proposed that authorised officers will also have the power to issue Fixed Penalty
Notices (FPNs) to owners whose dogs are off the lead in Portchester Crematorium.
What is the expected or anticipated impact of this change?
The proposal will affect all dog owners who walk and exercise their dogs in Fareham. There
is no record of the number of dogs in Fareham, but national estimates are that 33% of
households have at least one dog.
Considerate dog ownership is of concern to residents, who want the Council to take action
against irresponsible dog owners and there was strong support to extend the current PSPO
powers for another three years as well as including Portchester Crematorium in the list of
areas where dogs must be kept on leads.
Protected characteristic: Age (including children and young people)
Points to consider:




How have you considered the potential impact on people with this protected
characteristic?
What, if any, is the expected impact on people with this protected characteristic?
What steps or action is planned to mitigate any negative impact?

The proposed PSPO extends the power for authorised officers to issue Fixed Penalty
Notices for not cleaning up after a dog has littered and excludes them from designated


Page 27

areas such as play areas. This may have a positive impact on young people who are more
likely to come into contact with dog fouling and are at greater risk of infection.
Protected characteristic: Disability (including physical and those with mental health
conditions)
Points to consider:




How have you considered the potential impact on people with this protected
characteristic?
What, if any, is the expected impact on people with this protected characteristic?
What steps or action is planned to mitigate any negative impact?

No impact has been identified. Trained assistance dogs will be exempt from the controls
meaning that they will be able to support their owner in the dog excluded public locations
included in the PSPO. We will also consider dogs that assist their disabled owners
Protected characteristic: Gender reassignment
Points to consider:




How have you considered the potential impact on people with this protected
characteristic?
What, if any, is the expected impact on people with this protected characteristic?
What steps or action is planned to mitigate any negative impact?

No impact identified.
Protected characteristic: Marriage and civil partnership
Points to consider:




How have you considered the potential impact on people with this protected
characteristic?
What, if any, is the expected impact on people with this protected characteristic?
What steps or action is planned to mitigate any negative impact?

No impact identified.
Protected characteristic: Pregnancy and maternity
Points to consider:




How have you considered the potential impact on people with this protected
characteristic?
What, if any, is the expected impact on people with this protected characteristic?
What steps or action is planned to mitigate any negative impact?

No impact identified.
Protected characteristic: Race
Points to consider:


Page 28





How have you considered the potential impact on people with this protected
characteristic?
What, if any, is the expected impact on people with this protected characteristic?
What steps or action is planned to mitigate any negative impact?

No impact identified.
Protected characteristic: Religion or belief
Points to consider:




How have you considered the potential impact on people with this protected
characteristic?
What, if any, is the expected impact on people with this protected characteristic?
What steps or action is planned to mitigate any negative impact?

No impact identified.
Protected characteristic: Sex
Points to consider:




How have you considered the potential impact on people with this protected
characteristic?
What, if any, is the expected impact on people with this protected characteristic?
What steps or action is planned to mitigate any negative impact?

No impact identified.
Protected characteristic: Sexual orientation
Points to consider:




How have you considered the potential impact on people with this protected
characteristic?
What, if any, is the expected impact on people with this protected characteristic?
What steps or action is planned to mitigate any negative impact?

No impact identified.


Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 10(1)

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 45

